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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Registrar of Co-operative Societies
Re: First Regional Co-operalive Credit Union Limiled

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of First Regional Co-operative Credit Union
Limited, set out on pages 1 to 52 , which comprise the statement of financial position as of 31 December
2011, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumslances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require

that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivencss of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Fairview Office Park, Unit C2, 10 Alice Eldemnire Drive, Box 180, Montego Bay, Jamaica
T: (876) 952 5065, F: (876) 952 1273, www.pwc.com/jm
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Registrar of Co-operalive Societies

Re: First Regional Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Independent Auditors’ Reporl

Page=

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Credit Union as of 31 December 2011, and of its financial performance and its cash flows {or the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Co-operative Societies Act.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Co-operative Societies Act, we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept, so far as appears from our examination of
those records, and the accompanying financial statements are in agreement therewith and give the
information required by the Act, in the manner so required.

ot A Loy

Charlered Accountants

2g March 2012
Montego Bay, Jamaica



Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year snded 31 Decamber 2011

{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

Note

Interest Income
Interest on members' lcans
Interast on liquid assets
Interast on Investmants

Interest Expense
Interest on members’ fixed deposits
Intarest on members’ other depesits
Intarast on members’ voluntary shansa
Interast on bomawings

Nat Imterast Incoma

Loan Impalment provislon, net of recoverles 14
Nat imterast Income after Impalrmant Losses on Loans

Non-nterest Income

Fess and other Income B
Net Intersst and Othar Income
Operating Expenses
Administrative
Other
7

Nat Surplus, baing Total Comprehengeive Incoma for the Year

Restated
2011 2010
$000 $'000
356,595 334,794
22,159 15,821
29,106 28,311
—407.060 —08.920
9,501 15,803
9,856 12,946
36,000 38,124
2 857 -
58,214 66,673
349,646 322,053
(112,971) (52,747)
236,675 269,306
19,606 8,316
256,281 278,622
201,043 171,080
24,048 25,826
295,091 197,806
31,190 80,816




Statement of Financial Position
Year snded 31 Decamber 2011
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

ASSETS
Earning Asseats
Liquid Assais
Savings and call deposits
Short-term Invesimants

Revsrse Repurchase Agresmemnts
Financial Investmeonts
Loans 1o Mambers, net of Impalmant provision

Mon-Eamning Assets

Linuid Asaets

Cash and bank balances
Other Asseis

Accounts recalvabla
Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipmant
Investment Property
Retirement Boneilt Assei

10
11

12
13
14

1%

18
1T
18
18

Restated Restated
2011 2010 2009
§'000 $'000 $'000

51,681 18,037 50,062
135,706 211,211 260,306
187,387 229,248 310,448
447,971 347 p4g 134,044
144,031 140,727 187,200

1,727,882 1,700,417 1,641,883
2 507.271 2 417 450 2,054 475
12,204 7,859 8,825
6,673 21,393 38,280
1,033 224 428
162,558 36,224 30,140
6,712 8,712 6,712

47,492 41,078 32,183
236,762 113,480 114,468

2,744,033 2,530,840 2,368,843




Statement of Financial Position
Year snded 31 Decamber 2011
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

Note
LIABILITIEE AND EQUITY
Liabllities
Intasrest Boaring Liabilides
Membera' dapoalta
Members' voluntary shares
Borrowings

BNR

Non-interest Bearing Liabliity
Accounta payabla 24

Equity
Mambears' parmanant share caplial
Ingttutional capltal
Mon-institutional capital
Accumulated surplus

N R

Restatad Rastated

2011 2010 2009
$'000 $'000 $'000
652,879 623,937 558,929
1,250,620 1,175,126 1,185,658
47,765 750 2,323
1,851,264 1,796,813 1,746,810
33,933 25,832 18,469
1,985,197 1,825,445 1,766,379
47,971 23.470 1,047
387,376 378,728 328,051
86,428 185,484 64,028
237,061 116,813 209,438
758,836 705,485 802,564
2,744,033 2,530,940 2,388,943

Approved for lssue on behalf of the Board of Directors on 28 March 2012 and signed on its bahalf by:

Hopeton SHenry

Hard Fllor

Hopeton Henry Director Karl Fulles

Diractor




Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2011

{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

Mambears’
Parmanant Ngn-
Shars Instihutional Instihutonal Accumulated
Capltal Caplial Capltal Surplua Total
Nots $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balanca at 1 January 2010, as
restated 1,047 328,051 64,028 209438 602,564
MNat surplus, balng total
comprehensive income for the
year, as restated - - - 80,816 80,816
Transactions with ownara:
Dividends credited to members'
ghare capital 25 308 - - (308) -
Share capital receivad 25 22,115 - - - 2115
Appropriations from 2010 surplus -
Transfer to Institutlonal capltal,
as restated 28 - 50,175 - {50,175) -
Transfer to non-institutional
capital 27 - - 121,456 {121,456) -
Entrance fees 26 - 1,502 - (1,502) =
22423 51,677 121,456 {173,441) 22,115
Balance at 31 December 2010, as
rastated 23470 379,728 185,484 118,813 705,495
Nt surplug, being totl
comprehenshie Income for the year - - - 31,180 31,180
Transactions with owners:
Dividends credited to members'
ghare capital 25 2,347 - - {2,347) -
Share capital receivad 25 22,151 - - - 22151
Shara capltal redesmead 25 3 - {3) - -
Appropriations from 2011 surplus -
Transfor to insfitutional capital 26 - 5886 - (5,8B5) -
Tranafer from non-instiutional
capital 27 - - {98,053) 99,053 -
Entrance fees 28 - 1,782 - {1,762) -
24,501 7,848 {88.0568) 89 058 22,151
Balance at 31 December 2011 47971 387 376 BE 428 237,061 758 836

—




Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2011
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

Balance at 1 January 2010, az restatod
Appropriations from 2010 surplus -
20°% stahtory resarve, sa restatad
Transfer from accumulated surplus
Entrance fees
Balanca at 31 Decamber 2010, a5 resiatad
Appropriations from 2011 surplus -
20% statutory resarve
Entrance fees
Balance at 31 December 2011

Balance at 1 January 20110
Transfer of Increass In retiremant banefit
asset

Transfer from accumulated surplus

Balance at 31 Dacomber 2010

Transfer of incresses in retrements benafit
asset

Transfer to accumulated surplus

Transfer to members’ parmanent share
capital

Balance at 31 Dacembar 2011

27
27

27

27

27

Institutionsl Capltal
Permanant
Statutory Capital
Mote Rasorve Resarve Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
322,612 5,439 328,051
26 15,863 - 15,863
34,312 - 34,312
b 1,502 - 1,502
ar4,zen 5,438 379,728
26 5,886 - 5,886
26 1,762 - 1,762
381,937 5,439 387,376
Non-nsiliutlonal Capital
Retirament Capital Share
Benefit Assst Loan Loss Expenditure Transfer
Resord Resarve Reserve Fund Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $°000 $'000
32,183 - 31,645 200 64,028
8,895 - - - 8,885
- 105467 7,084 - 112,561
41,078 1054867 38,739 200 185,484
6,414 - - - B4
- {105487) - - (105,467)
= = = (3) (3)
47 492 - 38,739 187 86,428




Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 December 2011
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

Cash Flows from Operating Activitles

Interest recelved

Intarast pald

Fees and other income

Racoveries on impaired loans
Fayments to employees and suppllers
Tax refund

Changes in operating asssts and liabilites -
Loans to members
Othar assais
Retirement benefit asset
Members’ volurtary shares
Members’ depcsits
Cash provided by operating activitles

Cash Flows from Investing Activitiea

Short-term Investments

Financial investments

Reversse repurchase agreements
Furchase of Intanglble asseis

Furchasa of proparty, plant and squipment
Cash usad in nvesting activition

Cash Flows from Flnancing Acthviiles

Extamnal loan
Mambars' permanant shams capltal
Cash provided by financing aciivitles

Incraasef{decraasa) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR (Nota 15)

Restated
2011 2010
$'000 $’000
438,863 450,008
(60,080} (81,2589)
21,563 10,829
11,291 11,221
(211,260) (188,188)
14,617 22,072
213,804 224,603
(184,815) (186,836)
{283} {962)
(6,414) {8,895)
77,618 1,344
20,593 67,518
129,583 08,852
75417 49,028
(4,163} 23,381
{98,584) (212,094)
{1,008) (336)
{132,247) {10,162)
(160,673) {150,185)
47,400 -
22,154 22,115
69,554 22,145
38,464 (31,218
25,148 56,364
63,610 25,146




Notes to the Financial Statements

First Re

Co-operative Credit

31 December 2011
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

Identification and Acthivites

First Reglonal Co-operative Credit Unlon Limlied (the Credit Unien) Is Incorporeted under the laws of Jamalca
and is registerad under The Co-oparative Societies Act. The Credit Union'a registered offica is located at 14
Bravo Strest, 5t. Ann's Bay, 3t. Ann, and its operations are concertrated in the parishes of St. Ann and St
Mary.

Effactiva 30 June 2011, further to approval by the Reglsirar of Co-oparative Soclaties, membership to the
Crexiit Union is obtained by holding a minimum of $1,000 in permansnt shares and & minimum of $100 in
voluntary shares. Previously, membership was obtalined by holding a minlmum of $400 In permanent shares
and a minimum of $100 In veluntary shares.

Individual membership may not exceed 20% of the total share capital of the Cradit Union. Mernbership ia
primarily available to individuals who were bom in the parishes of 5t. Ann and St. Mary or who work, reside or
have relatives residing In these parishes.

The main activities of the Credit Union are to promote thrift amongsi its members by affording them an
opportunity to accumulate their savings and to create for them a source of credit, for provident or productive
purposes at reasonable rates of interest.

The Credit Unlon Is a member of tha Jamalca Co-operative Credit Unlon Leagua Limited (JCCULARe Laagua),
which provides financial services, technical support and sels prudential standards for the credit union
movement,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policles applled In the preparation of these financlal statements are sat out below.
Thesa policlas have baan applied conslstantly to all the yaars presanied, unlass otherwisa stated.

(a) Basls of preparation
Theese financlal statements have been prepared In accordance with International Financlal Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and have been prepared under the hislorical cost conventlon, s modified by the
revaluation of cartain available-for-sale asssats.

The preparation of financial statemants in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accourting
astimates. It also requires management to exercize Itz Judgement in the process of applving the Cradit
Unlon's accounting pollcles. Althaugh these estimates ane basad on management's best knowledge of cument
events and conditions, actusl resulis could differ from these eslimates. The ansas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or arees where assumplions and estmstes are significant to the financial
statements are disciosed In Note 5.

Amendments to publishad standards and Inferpratations effective in the current yoar

Cartain interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been publshed that bacame effective
during the current financial year. The Credit Union has assessed the relevance of all such interpretations and
amendments and has put Into place the following amendments, which are Immediately relevant to fis

operaions.

IAS 1 {Amandmant) - Presentation of financial statemants {(effeciive for annual pedods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011). This amendment clarifies that an entity will prezent an analysls of other
comprahansiva Incoms for sach componant of aquity, slther In the siatement of changes In squlty or In tha
notes to the financisl statements. This smendment is applied retrospectivaly. Tha Cradit Union has elected
to cortinue analysis of other compmehengive income in the statement of changea in equity.



Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2011
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

2. Summary of Significant Ascounting Policies {Continued)

{a)

Basls of preparation (continued)
Amendments o publizhed standards and interpretations effecifve In the current year {continued)

IAS 24 (Revised) - Related party disclosures {effective from 1 January 2011). The revised standard
simplifies the definition of a related parly. It clarfles Its Intended meaning and eliminates Inconsistencles
from the definition. The revigion provides & partial sxempltion from the disclosure requirements for
govemmant-redated antides. The Cradit Unlon applled 1AS 24 {Revisad) from 1 January 2011. It did not
have a matarial impact on the Craedit Union's financial statements.

IFRS 7 {Amandment) Financial Instrumanis - Discloauras (sffective 1 January 2011). Tha amendmaent
clarifies the disclosure requirement by emphaslaing the Interaction betwaen quantitative and qualitative
disclosures and the nature and extent of risks assoclated with financlal Instruments. Amendments were
made to qualitative and credit risk disclosures. The adoption of thizs amendment will result in changes in
the presantation of credit rak disclosures. The Credit Unlon applied IFRS 7 (Ameandmant) from 1 January
2011. It did not have a material impact on the Credit Union's financial statements.

IFRIC 14 {Amandmenis] - Prepaymeants of a minimum funding requirement {affective for annual
periods beginning 1 January 2011). The amendments correct an unintended consequence of IFRIC 14,
|AS 18 — The limit on a defined benefit aseet, minimum funding requirements and thelr Interaction’. Without
the amandments, entities are not pemmitted to recognise as an assst some voluntary prepayments for
minimum funding contributions. This was not Intended when IFRIC 14 was lssued and the amendments
commect this. The Credit Union applied this amendment from 1 January 2011. i did not have a matesial
Impact on the financlal stataments.

IASE Annual Improvemants 2010. In May 2010, the IASB published amendments to six standards and
one Interpretation resulting from s Annual Improvements Project. The effective date for most amendments
ls annual parlods beginning on or after 1 July 2010. The Credit Union adopted these amendmerts as of 1
January 201 1. Their adoption did not have a significant Impact on the financial statements.

Standards, Inforprefations and amendmants fo publizhed standards that are noi ot offective and
heve notl besn early edopled by the Credit Union

At the date of authorisation of these financial statoments, certain new standards, amendments and
intarpratations to existing standands have been issusd which were not effective at the statement of financial
pesition date, and which the Credit Union has not early adopted. The Credit Union has assessed the
relevance of all such new standards, Interpretations and amendments, has determined that the following
may be relevant to its operations, and has concluded as follows:

IAS 1 (Amsndment} - Presantation of financlal stataments (effective for annual pardods baginning on or
after 1 July 2012). The amendment requires entltiss to group kems presantad In other comprehensive
income (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potantially recyclable to net surplus subsequently
{reclassification adjustmerts). The amendment doss not address which tems should be presented in OCI,
and the option to present Hems of OC| elther before tax or net of tax has been relained. The only
anticipated impact on adoption is to the disclosure of items presented in OCI in the statement of
comprehensive Income. Management Is assessing the Impact of adoption on the Credit Unlon.




Notes to the Financial Statements

First Re, —y
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31 December 2011
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continuad}

{z} Basis of praparation (contnuad)

Sinndands, Interpretations and smendments o published stendards that are not yut effective and
have not been early adopfed by the Credit Unfon {confinued)

IAS 19 {Amendment} - Employse beneflts (sffactive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013). These amendments aliminate the comidor approach and calculate finance costs on a net Tunding
basis. The significant changes affecling the Credit Union are that actuarial gaing and losses are renamed
'remeasuramants’ and will be recognisad immadiately In other comprehensiva Income. Actuarial gains and
loases will no longer be deferred using the comidor spproach or recognised in profit or loss.
Ramaasuraments recognised In othar comprahansive Incoma will not ba racycled thraugh proflt or loss In
subsequent periods. The annual income or expense for funded bensefit plans will include net interast
expense or incoms, calculatad by applying the discount rate to the net defined benafit asaet or Rability.

This will replace the finance charge and expected retumn on plan asseis. Additional disclosures are
raquirad io present the characterdstles of banefit plans, the amounts recognised In the financlal siatamants
and the risks arising from defined benefit plans and multiemployer plans. The Cradit Union will apply
thasa amandmants from 1 January 2013.

IFRE 13 - Falr value measurement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).
The standard explains how to measure fair value for financlal reporting. It defines fak value; seis out In a
singla IFRS a framework for measuring fair value; and requires disclosures about fair valus measurements.
This standand applles to those standards that require or parmit falr value measurements or disclosures
about fair value measurements (and measursments, such as fair value less cosis to sell, based on fair
valua or disclosuras about those measuramanis), axcapt in specifiad circumstances. The Credit Unlon Is
currently axamining the affect of this on ks operations.

IFRS $ - Financlal Instruments (affactive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015). IFRS
8, Financial instruments — Part 1: Classification and Measuramert was issusd in November 2010 and
raplaces thoge parts of I1AS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of financlal assets. Key
features are as follows:

Financlal asgsets are raquired to ba classified Into two measurement categories: those to be measurad
subsaqueantly at falr valus, and those to ba measurad subsaquently at amortisad cost. The declslon s fa ba
made at Initial recognition. The classification depends on the entlty’s business modal for managing ks
financial ingtruments and the contraciual cash fiow characteristica of the ingtrument.

An instrument is subsequenty measured at ameortised cost only f it is a debt instrument and both the
objectiva of tha antity's business modal Is to hold the asszat to collect tha contractual cash flows, and the
asset’s comtractual cash flows represent only paymenis of principal and interest (that is, it has only 'basic
loan featunas'). All othar dabt Instrumeants are to be measured at fakr value through profit or loss.

All aquity instruments are to ba measured subsequently at fair value. Equity instruments that are held for
trading will ba measurad at fair value through profit or loss. For all other aquity Invastmants, an Imevocabla
elaction can be made at inial recognition, to mcognisa urnraaiised and realisad fair value gains and loases
through cther comprahenslve Income rather than profit or loss. There |s to ba no recycling of falr value
gains and losses to profit or loss. This aleclion may be made on an instrument-by-instument basis.
Dividands ara to ba prazentad In profit or lass, as long as thay reprasant a ratum on Investment. The Cradit
Unlon Is currently examining the effect of this standard on its operations.



Notes to the Financial Statements

First Re, —y
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31 December 2011
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policlas (Continued)

(a)

(b}

(e}

{d)

Bazls of preparation {continued)

Standards, and amendmants fo published sfandards that are not yot affective and
have not been sarly adopted by the Credii Union (continued)

IFRS 3 - Financlal Instruments (continued)

The next phase of IFRE 9 deak with financial liabilites. Amorlised cost accounting for most financial
limbilities is retained, with bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The main change is that in cases whan the
fair valus optlen Is taken for financial llabllites, the part of a falr value change due fo an entliy’s own credit
rigk i mocorded in other comprahansive income rather than net aurplus, unkess this croates an accounting
mismatch. The Credit Unlon Is considering the Impllcations of the standard, the Impact on the financlal
statements and the timing of its adoption.

inberast Incoms and axpansa

Interest Income amd expense are mecognisad In the shatement of comprehansive income for all Interest
bearing Instruments on an accrual basls, using the effective Weld method, based on the actual purchase
price. Intarest income includes coupens samed on foed income invesiments and accrued discounts or
pramiume on discounted Instrumeants.

The sffaciiva Interast mathod Iz a mathod of celeulating the amortisad cost of a financlal assat or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or intersst expenss over the relsvant period. The effective
Intarest rate Is the rela that exactly discounts astimated future cash paymeants or racalpts through tha
expacted life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net cammying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculaling the effective interest rate, the Credit Union
estimates cash flows considering all contractual tarms of the financial Instrument but does not conelder
future credit kosses. The calculation inchudes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an Intagral part of tha affective intanast rate, transaction costs and all othar pramlums or discounts.

Where collection of Interest Income Is conslkdared doubiful, the related financlal Instruments ans writhen
down to their recoverable amounts and interest income is thereaftsr recognised based on the rate
of interest that was usad to diacount the future cash flows for the purposa of measaring the Impalmmant loss.

Fess and other Income
Fees and other income are recognised on an accruals basis. Loan ongination fees are defermed and are
recognised over the Iife of tha loan, as an adjusitmant to the affective ylald on the lbans.

Forelgn currency transiation

{I} Functional and presentation curmancy
Items inchuded in the financial statements e measured using the currency of the primary sconomic
anvironment In which tha Cradit Unlon oparatas ("the functional cumancy”). The financlal statemants are
presentsd in Jamaican dollarg, which i alao the Credit Union's functional currancy.

{i} Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated In forslgn cumencles are converted Into the functional cumrency at the rates
of exchange prevalling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assels and liabllitles denominated In
foreign currencies are  franskated at the rate of exchange ruling at the statement of financial pesition
date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the seitlement of transactions at rates differing
from those at the dates of the transactions and unrealised foreign sxchange gain or losses on unsetted
forelgn currancy monetary assats and llablliies ara recognised In tha stetament of comprshensiva
incoma.



Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2011
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

2. Bummary of Significant Accounting Pollcles {Continuad)

{(#} Financial assets
The Credit Linlon allocates financlal asaats to the following IAS 39 categories: loans and recelvablas; held-
to-maturity investments; and available-for-gale financial assets. Management determines the classification
of its financial instruments et initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

{a) Hald-lo-maturity investments
Held-to-maturlty Investments are non-derivative finenclal assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturites that the Credit Union’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity, other than:

(i} thosa that the Credit Unlon upen initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or
loss;

{Ily those that the Credit Unlon designates as avallable-for-zale; and
{lll} thoase that mast tha dafinltlon of loans and recaivablas.

These are Inltally recognised at falr value Including direct and Incremental transaction cosats and
measuned subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective intersst method.

Interest on held-to-maturity Investments Is Included in the statement of comprehensive Income as
interest income. In the case of an mpairment, the impairment loss is reporied as a deduction from the
camrying value of the Investment and recognised In the net surplus or deficlt as net geins/{losses) on
investments.

At the statement of financial position date, held-to-maturity investments comprise GOJ benchmark
investment notes and local registerad stock, included in financial investments on the statement of
financiel position.

{b) Lecans and recelvables
Leans and receivables are non-derivative financial asesis with fixed or determinable payments that ame
not quotad In an active markst, other than these that tha Credit Unlon:

(i} intends to gell immediately or in tha short term, which are cleesified as held for trading, and thoss
that the Credit Linlkon upon Initial recognition deslgnates as at fair value through profit or loss;

{il upon Inial recognition, designates as avallable-far-sale; or
{ill} may not recavar substantlally othar than bacauss of credit detedoration.

Loans and recsivables ara Intally recognised at falr value - which Is the cash conslderation to
originate or purchese the loan Incuding any transaction costs - and measured subsequently at
amortived cost using the sifectve interest method.

Interest on loans is included in the statement of comprehensive income and is reported as ‘interest
income’. In the case of an Impelment, the Impalment loss |s reported as a deductlon from the
carrying value of the lan and recognised in the statement of comprehensiva income as ‘loan
Impairment provialon'.




Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2011
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated})

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles (Continued)
{a} Financial azsets {continuad)

(b} Loans ard recarvables (continued)
At the statement of finandial position data, the following tems were classifled as loans arnd recalvables
loans to mambers, net of Impalment provislon; accounts recelvable; and cartain required Investments
with the Jamalca Co-operative Cradit Unlon League Limited included In financlal Investments on the
statarment of financial position.

{c) Awallable-for-sale Investiments
Avallable-for-sale Investments are financlal assets that are intended to be hald for an Indefinlte period of
time, which may be sold in response o neads for liquidity or changes in Interast rates, exchange ratas
or equity prices or that are not classified as loans and recatvables, held-to-maturity Investments or
financial assets at falr value through profit or loss.

Avallable-for-gale financlal assets ara initlally recognised at falr value, which Is the cash conslderation
including any fransaction costs, and measued subsaguently at fair value with gains and losses being
recognisad In iha statement of comprahenalva Income, axcapt for Impaiment loasas and forslgn
exchange gains and losses, unill the financlal asset I deracognised.

if an avsiable-for-sale imvestment is determined to be impaired, tha cumulstive gain or loss praviously
recognised in othar comprehensive income 8 recycled and recognised in net surplus. Interest is
calculated using the effective Intersst method, and forslgn currancy gains end lossas on monatary
asseis classified as avalable-for-sale are recognised In the stetement of comprehensive Income.

The Credit Union’a available-for-sale investments primarily comprise liquid asasts, certzin  financial
Investments, unguoted aquities and reverse repurchase agreaments.

{f} Financial lablitics
The Cradit Union"s financial liabilittes primarily comprise membears' deposits, members’ volurtary shares,
bomowings and accounts payabla. Thesa are inttially recognised at fair value, being the amount recalved on
origination of the llebllty and are subsaquently messured at amortlsed cost using the effective Interest
method,

{g} Impalment of financial assets
The Cradit Unlon azsessas at each reporting date whather there Iz oblactiva evidence that a financlal asset
or group of financlal assets Is Impalred. A financlal asset or a group of financlal assets s Impakred and
impaimment Iosses ame incurmed only if there iz objective evidance of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurmed after the initial recognition of the assat (a logs event”) and that ices evant (or events)
has an Impact on the astimatad future cash flows of the financial asast or group of financlal assats that can
be rellably estimated,

The criteria that the Credit Union usas to determine that thara is objective evidenca of an impaiment loas
includa:

{l) significant financlal difficulty of the lksuer or obligor;
(i) & breach of contract, such aa a dafault or dalinquency in interast or principal paymants;

{ll} the Credit Unlon, for economic or lagel reasons relating to the bomower's financlal difficulty,
granting to the borower a concesslon that the Cradit Unlon would not otherwise consider;

(v} K becomes probable that the bomrower will anter bankruptey or other financlal rscrganisation;
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles (Continued)

g) Impalrment of financial asssts [continuad}

{v) the disappearance of an aclive market for that financial asset because of financial difficullies; or

{vl} observable data Indicating that there ls a measurable decraase In the estimated future cash flows from
a portfolle of financlal assets since the Inltlal recognition of these assets, although the dacrease cannot
yat ba Kentifled with the Individual financial assets In the portfolle, Including:

{a} adverse changes In the payment status of bormowers In the portfollo; and
(b} national or local aconomic conditions that correlats with defaults on the aasats in the portiolio.

Tha Cradit Union first assaessas whether abjective avidence of impairment axists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectivsly for financial assets thet am not
individually significant. If the Credit Union determines that no objective svidence of impaimment exists for an
individ ually assessed financial asset, whether significant or net, it includes the assst in & group of financial
ansets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impeirment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impaiment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised ame
not included in & collactive agsessment of impainment.

The amount of the loss |& measured as the differance batwasn the asset's carrying amount and the prasent
valua of astimatad future cash flows {axcluding future credlt lossas that heve not basn Incurmad) discounted
at the financlal asset's original effactive Interest rate. Tha camying amount of the asset Is reduced through
the use of an allowanca account and tha amount of the loas k= recognised In tha siatamant of
comprehensive incoma.

If & loan o held-to-maturity irmvestment has & variable interast rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment lces is the current effective interest rete determined under the contract. As a praciical expedient,
tha Cradit Union may messure impairment on the basis of an instrument's fair value using an obeervable
market price.

When a loan I3 uncollectible, it I1s wiittan off against the related allowance for the loan Impalment. Such
loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the less has
been determined. Racoveries In part or In full of amounts praviously written off are crediied to recoveries of
Impalred loan In the statement of comprehensive Incoma.

The Cradit Linlon's Impairment loss pravision requirements, 8s stipulated by the Jamalca Co-ocperative Credit

Union Leagus Limited, require that If a payment on a loan |8 contractually two months In arrears, tha laan
will ba classified az Impalrad, 1 not already classified as such for other reasona. Tha amount by which the
Credit Unlon provision exceeds the IFRS Impairment provision la dealt with In a non-distributable koan loss
reserve as an appropriation of accumulated surplus.

{h} Revarse repurchase agrssmants

Securitiens purchased under agreements to resell are recordad as collateralised financing fransactions. The
difference between the sale/purchase and repurchase/rasale price s treatad as Interest and accruad owver
tha life of the agreements using the effective yisld method.

i} Accounts recelvable

Accournts receivable are camied at anticipated realisable value. An estimate is mads for doultful receivables
based on &l outstanding amounts at year and. Bad debis are written off In the year In which they are kientified.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles [Continued)

{k}

(m)

(m}

Cash and cash squivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cariad In the statement of financlal position at cost.  For the purposes of the
cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash In hand and at bank and deposlis with a
meturity of less than 90 days, not held to satlsfy League requirements, net of bank overdraft

intangible annste

Intanglble assets, which represent the Credit Unlon's software, are amortised on a simight-line basls over Ks
expectad useful life of three years. Whera the expacied useful life of the asset iz different from previous
astimates, the amortisation pariod will changs accordingty.

Proparty, plant and squipmsnt

Property, plant and aquipment are caned at historical cost less accumulated depraciation and impairment
losses. No depreciation |s considerad necessary In respact of land and work-n-progress. Historical cost
Includes axpanditure that Is directly atiributable to the acquisliion of the tams.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
eppropriate, only when Lk |s probable that future economlc benefits assoclated with tha Hem will flow to the
Cradit Unlon and the cogt can be measured rellably. All repairs and malntenance are charged to the
statement of comprehensiva incoma during the financial parod in which they ars ineurred.

Dapracistion i provided at annual rates that will write off the camying value of the assets over their estimated
useful lives. The rates usad are as follows:

Stralght-line basls -
Bulldings 24%
Computer equipment 3a'L%
Furniture, fodures and aquipment 10%
Reducing balance basle -
Readway 2%%

Proparty, plant and aquipmant are parodically reviawed for impeirmant. Yham ths camying amount of an assat
Ie greater than s estimated racovarable amount, It s written down immediately to e recoverable amount.

Gains and kases on disposale are determined by comparing proceaeds with the carmying amounts and ame
Included In net surplue.

Repsirs and renewals are charged to the statement of comprehensive income when the expenditure is incurmad.

Impairmeant of non-financlal assets

Agzats that have an indafinite usefil life, for example land, am not subject to amortigation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assats that am subject to amorlisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
evenis of changes In circumsiances Indicate that the carndng amount may not be recoverable. An
Impalment loss ls recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carmying amount excoeds Its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount ls the higher of an agset's falr value less costs to sell and valua In use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, aasels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separataly
Identifiakle cash flows (cash-ganerating uniis). Non4inanclal assats that suffersd an Impalment are reviewad
for possible reversal of the Impalrment at each reporting date.

Employas banefits - psnsion plan

The Cradit Linlon participates In a mult-employer defined banefk penclon plan. The pansion plan le generally
funded by paymernts from empleyess and by tha Credit Unlon, taking Into sccount tha recommendations of
indepandent qualified actuaries.

—
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

{n) Employses beneflts - pansion plan (contnued)
Defined benefit plans define an amourt of pengion benefit that an employes will recaive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The asset or llabliity recognised In the statement of financlal posltion In respect of defined benefit pansion
plans iz the difference betwsen the present value of the defined beanefit obligation at the statement of
financlal position date and the falr value of plan assots, together with ad|ustments for unrecognised actuarial
gaing or losgas and past service costs. The defined bensfit cbligation Is calculated annually by Independent
actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method, The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outfliows using discount rates based on market ylelds
on govemment securities which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related psnsion
labllity.

Actuarial galns and losses arlsing from axperlence adjusimenta and changes In  actuarial
assumptions In of the greater of 10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit
obligation are chamged or credited {o income over the employses' expacted average remaining working
Ives. Past-service costs are recognised Immediately In ad ministrative expenses, unless the changes to the
pension plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the
vesting parlod). In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a streight-line basls cver the vesting
period.

{0} Accounts payable
Aczounts payable are Intally recordad at falr value and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

{p) Provisions
Provislons are recognized when the Credit Unlon has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past svenis, it is probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of tha amount can ba made.

{g) Mambers' voluntary shares
Members' voluniary shares represent withdrawable deposit holdings of the Credit Unlon’s members to
faciitate  eligihility for loans and other benaiits. Interest paid on these shares is classified as an sxpense and
I= pald at a rata that ks fixed from tima o tima by the Beard of Directors.

{r} Members’ pormanont sharg capital
Members' permanent share capital represents shares pakl up in cash and form part of the risk capital of the
Cradit Unlon. Mambers' parmanant share caplial may ba radsemable sublect to the sale, transfer or
repurchasa of such shares. Dividends on members' parmanent share capital are recognised in equity in the
parod In which they are approved by the Cradit Unlon's members.

{z] Institutional caplal
Institutional capital Includes the statutory reserve fund, as well a8 varlous other reserves established from
time to time which, in the opinion of the Directors, are necessary to support the operations of the Cradit
Union and, thereby, protect the Interest of the members. These reserves are not avallable for distribution to
meambers.
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2. Summary of SignHicant Accounting Paolicles {Cont nusd)

{t)} Investment property
Property that ls held for capltal appreciation and that s not occupled by the Credit Unlon, Is classifled as
imvestment property. Investment property comprises land, for which no depreciation is provided.

Recognition of investment property takes place only when it is probabie that the future economic benefits
that are associated with the Investment property will flow to the entity and the cost can ba measured rallably.
This ks usually the day when all risks are transfemed.

Investment property k= carled at cost, Including transaction costs. The camrying amount Includes the cost of
replacing parts of an existing investment property at the time the cost is incumed if the recognition critera
are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an Inveatmeant property.

{u) Borrowings
Bomowings are recognised Inlitally at falr value, net of transaciion costs Incurrad. Bomowings are subsequently
slated ot amortieed cost using the effective yield method, Any difference between the procesds, net of
transaction costs, and the redempiion value Is recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income over the
periad of the bormowings using the sffective interest method.

{¥i Comparative Information
Whera necessary, certain comparathve figures have been restated to conform with current year
presentation.

Where |1AS 8 applles, comparative figures used In preparing the financlal statements have been adjusied to
corform with changes in presentation in the current year,

. Financial Risk Managamant

The Credit Union's activities exposa it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and managament of some degres of sk or combination of risk.  Taking risk Is core 1o
the financlal business, and operational risk Is an inevitable consaquence of being In business. The Credit
Union's aim is thereform to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and retums and minimise potential
adverse effects on the Credit Unlon's financlal performance.

The Credit Unlons rsk management policles are designed to Identtfiy and analyse these rsks, to sat
apprapriate risk [imits and controls, and to monltor the adharenca to limits by means of rellable and up-to-date
information systems. The Credit Union regulardy reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect
changes In markets, products and emenging best practice.

In February 2010, the Cradit Union participated in the Jamaican Debt Exchange (JDX) transaction under which
the Gredit Unlon exchanged itz holdings of domestic debt Instruments lssued by the Government of Jamalca
for new, longar-dated dabt Instruments avallable to the Credit Unlon under the slaction options contalnad In the
agreement. The JDX transaction resulted in & reduction in yields and an increase in the tenor of locally issuead
Govemnment of Jamalea securiles and, therefore, had a significant Impact on financlal risks.

The Board of Directors is ultimately respongible for the establishment and oversight of the Cradit Union's risk
management policles and sirategles and I committed to complying with all the regulstions and leglslation
under which the Cradit Unlon operaies. In addiion, an effective compllance programme |s an Imporiant
alement of its risk management system.
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3. Financlal Risk Managament [Continuad)

The Board has established committees/uniis for managing and monitoring risks as follows:

(i} Risk Compliance Unit
This unit ensures conformity with requiatory requirements. A Risk and Compllance Manager ensures that

=l regulatory requirerments of the Bank of Jamaica, the League and the Financial Investigeating Unit of the
Ministry of Finance and Planning are met.

{i) Risk Management Unit (RMU)
The League has established an RMU for credit unions in Jamaica and the Gredit Union participates in
this sk management Inltlative. They conduct seminars, dreft policles and assist credit unlons In
identifying and mansging risks.

{lly The Tressury and Investiment Gommitiees
The Tressury Committes is respongible for managing the Cradit Union's assets and liabilies and the
overall financial structure. It is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Credit
Unlon. The Investment Committee |z responsible for monttoring and formulating Investment portfollos
and imvestment strategies for the Credit Union.

{v) Asset and Llablllty Commitiee
The Asset and Liability Committes is responsaible for appropriate trading limits and reports on compliance
controls to ensure that its mandate is properly followad.

{v) Supervisory Committes
The Supervisory Commitiee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Credit Union's risk
management pollcles and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk menagement framework In
refation to the risks faced by the Credit Union. The Committes is assisted in its oversight role by intemal
audit. Internal audit undertakes koth regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reporied to the Board of Directors through the Supervisory
Committee.

(v} Credit Committee
The Credit Commitiee oversess the approval and disbursement of credit facilities to members. It is also
primarily naspoensible for monitoring the quality of the loan porifolic.

The Cradit Union is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and other operational risk. Market rigk
includes currency risk and interest rate risk.

{a) Credirisk

The Credit Unlon takes on exposure to credit dsk, which ks the sk that s members or counterparties will
cause a financial loss for the Credit Union by failing to dischamge their contractual obligations. Credit risk is
tha most Important risk for the Credii Unlon'a busineas, managemant therefora carafully manages Ha
aexpesure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending and investment activities. There is
al=o cradit dsk In off-statemant of financial position financlal Inatrumeants, auch as loan commiimanta. The
Credlt Unlon struchures the levels of credit rigk it underiakes by placing limits on the amount of Ask accepted
in relstion to & single counterparty, relatad courterparties and ndustry segments.
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3. Financlal Rlsk Management {Continued)

{a) Credit sk (continued)

Cradit-relatad commiimant rsks afse from guarantses which may raquire payment on bahalf of members.
Such paymerts are collected from members based on the terms of the letters of credit. They exposa the
Cradit Union to samilar risks to loans and these ars mitigated by the same control policies and procasses.

Credit raview proceas
Tha Credit Unlon has a credit quallty review procass Invoiving regular analysls of the ablity of borrowars
to meat interest and capital rapayment obligations.

(i) Locans
Tha Cradit Unlon assessaz the probabliity of default of bormowars. Exposure to credlt rsk I
managed in part by abtainiOng collateral and personal guaranteses. The credit quality review process
allows the Credit Linlon to aszeas tha potentlal loss as a rasult of the fsk to which k Ia exposad and
take cormective action,

(i Investmants
Tha Cradit Unlon limits s exposure to credii sk by Investing malnly In liquid securitiaa, with
counterparties that have high credit quallty and Govemment of Jamalca securtles. Accordingly,
manzgement doas not expect any countarparty to fzil to meet its obligations.

Coliateral and other credi? enhancemants

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of tha credlt sk of the member
and the size of the loan. Guidselines ara implemented reganding the accepiability of differant types of
collataral.

The main types of collateral obtained am ag follows:

- Mortgages over real estate

= Bllls of sale on motor vehlcles

- Hypothecated financial instrumsents such as certificates of deposits with regulated banks
- Lens on mambers’ deposits maintained with the Cradlt Unlon

Management monktors the markst value of collateral, during s review of the adequacy of the provision for
cradit losses.

impalrment

The main considerations for the loan impaiment assessment include whether any payments of principal
or Interest are overdue by more than 30 days or there are any known difficulies In the cash flows of
countarparties or there are infringements of the ariginal terms of the contract.

The Gradit Union addresses impairment essessment individually.
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3. Financial Risk Management [Continuwed)

{a) Cradk risk (continued)

impairment {continuad)

An impairment allowance is provided for each individual loan that is impaired with no consideration of
matarlality. An Impalment assesement |5 conducted annually. Impalment allowances on Individually
assassed accounts ane delermined by an avaluation of the Incurrad loss at the siatamant of financial positon
date on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all accounts with a past due date of more than 30 days. The
assessmeant normally encompasses collateral held and the anticlpated recsipts for that Indhvidual account.

The League's loan logs provisloning rules described above focus more on credlt-guality mapping of the
respeciive dellnguancy parods to cormesponding pre-datermined percentages. In contrast, Impakmant
provisions are recognised for financlal reporting purposas only for losses that have been Incurmed at the
statment of financial position dale based on objective evidence of impairment. Due o the differant
mathodologlas appllad, tha amount of Incumed cradit losses provided for In the financlal statements may
differ from the amount determined from the League's loan loss provisioning rules that are used for intemnal
operational management and the Credit Union's internal provigioning metho.

The table below shows loans to members, net of impaimment provision and the associated IFRS impaiment
provislon:

2011 2010
Impalment Impalrment
Loamns Provision Loans Provision
$'000 $'000 $'00d £'000
Loans to members, nat
of impairment provision 1,727 8682 26,553 1,700,417 44 079

Credit risk exposure
Maximum sxposurs to cradit risk bafors collateral hald or other cradit anhancaments:

For items on the statesment of financial position, the exposures are based on net camying amounts as
rapartad In tha statement of financlal position.

For iterns not on the statement of financial poaition, ses table below representing a worst caze scenario of
credit risk exposure to the Credit Unlon at 21 December 2011 and 2010, without taking sccount of any
collatsral held or other credit snhancements.

2011 2010
$'000 o0
Loan commitments 54,886 52,007
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{a) Credit dsk (continued)
{iy Credit quality of loans are summarised asz follows:
2011 2010
$°000 $'000
Nalther past dua nor Impalrad 1,688,118 1,450,392
Past due but not Impalred 2,094 154,233
Impalrad B4, 225 139,871
Gross 1,754,435 1,744,496
Lesa: Allowances for Impalment {26,553) {44,079}
MNat 1,727,882 1,700,417

The majority of past due lpang are considerad to be impaired. Further information on the impairment
allowance for loans |s provided In Note 14.

{iiy Ageing analysis of past due but not impaired loans:

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Lass than 2 months am 22,218
2 - 3 montha 4 18,099
3 - 6 months 1,514 32212
6 - 12 months 145 47,650
Graatar than 12 months - 33,054
2,084 154 233

Thare are no financial assets other than loans that are past dus. All loans paat due and Impaired afier
12 months are writien off.

{ii} Financial assets — ndividually impaired
Financial assets that are Individually Impaired before taking Into conskierastion the cash flows from
collateral hald are as follows:

2011 2010
$'000 §'000
Loans B4,225 138,871

The fair value of collateral that the Gredit Unicn held as security for individually impaired loans was
appraxi mately $150,842 000 {2010 - $450,089,000).

There ara no financlal asssts other than those listed above that wers Indlvidually Impalred.
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3. Financial Risk Management {Confinuad)

{a) Creditrak {continued)
(v} Renegotlated loans

Restructuring activiles Include extended payment arrangements, approvad extemal management
plans, modification and deferral of payments. Following restructuring, 8 previously ovardue customer
account s reset to a normal status and managed togather with other similar accourts. Restructuring
policles and practices are based on Indicators or criterla which, In the Judgment of management,
indicate that payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous review.
Restructuring s most commonly applled to term loans. As at 31 December 2011, there were

renegotiatsd loans totalling $85,397,000 (2010 - nil).

(v} Repossassed collateral

The Credit Unlon obtalned assets by taking possesslon of collateral held as security, as follows:

Carrying Carmrying

Amount Amount

2011 2010

$'000 $000

Real estate 184 10,106
Mator vehloles 4 970 -
5,164 10,108

Repossessed motor vehicles and properiies ere sold as scon es practicable with the proceeds used

to reduce the ouistanding indebtadness.

{vi) Debt sacurities

The following table summarises the Credit Unlon's credit exposure for debt securiies at thelr camying

amounts, as catagorised by lasuer:

2011 2010

$'000 $'aoa

Government of Jamaica 72,587 70,832
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union Leagua Limited 60,691 66,777
Financial institutions 447,971 349,688
581,249 477,385
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3. Fimanclal Risk Managemant {Continued])

(s} Credit sk (continued)

{vii) Loans
The following table summariees the Credit Union's cradit exposure for loang at their camying
amounts, as calegorisad by the Indusiry sectors:

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Construction and real sstate 682,080 856,816
Educetion 75,728 76,907
Business investment 84,152 97,785
Agriculture 6,699 2,131
Parsonal and others 874,853 856,836
1.733.512 1.690.485
Less: Provigion for cradit lossas {26,553) {44,079)
1,706,958 1,646,406
Irterast receivabio 20,8923 54011
1,727 852 1700417

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk Iz tha risk that the Credlt Unlon will ancounter difficulty In ralsing funds to maat commitments
associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and fo replace funds when they are withdrawn.
The conseguence may be the fallure to meet obligations to repay meambers and fulfill commitmenis to
lend.

Ligulcitly risk manegement procoss
The Credit Unlon’s liquidity risk management process as monttored by the Treasury Gommitiee Includes:

(i) monitoring future cash flows and liquklity on a daily basis. This incorporates an assessment of
expected cash outfiows and the availability of cash to meet these outfiows;

(Il meintaining & balanced porfollo batween financlal Invesimants and liguld assats that can sasily ba
liquidated as profection against any urforeseen intermmuption to cash fiow;

(I} optmising cash rstums on Investments;

{iv} Malntaining committed lines of credit; and

{¥} monitoring statement of financial position liquidity ratios against intermal and regulatory requirements.
One of the most important of thess is fo maintain code one rating liquidity ratio acconding to the
PEARL S-M standard.

Monltoring and reporting take the form of cagh flow measurement and projections for the naxt day, wesk
and month, respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity management The starting point for thosa
projactions ks an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financlal llabllilas and the axpactad collection
date of the financlal assets.
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Financlal Risk Management (Contlnued)
{b} Liquidity risk {continuad)

LiqedcBty risk manasgement process {continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interast rates of assels and liabilities
are fundamertal to the management of the Credit Unlon. i s unusual for financlal Instthtions to
ever ba complately matched since business trangacted ks ofien on uncertaln ferms and of different
tpes. An unmatched position potantially enhances profiability, but also incressas the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilites and the ability to replace, at an accepiable cost, interest-bearing
liabliiies as they mature, are Imporiant factors In a=zsessing the liquidlty of the Credit Unlon and lis
exposura to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Financlal Habliifes and agsets held for managing Hguldity risk
The tables below presants the cash flows receivable and payable of the Credit Union for financial liabilities
and assets held for managing liquidity risk by remalning confractual maturity. The amounts disclosed In
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow (princlpal and Interest cash flows).

2011

Within 3 3to12 1to § Ovear & No SpacHic
Months Months Years Yaars Maturlty Total

$'000 $'000 $£'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financlal Assste
Eamings assets
Liguid assets -
Savings and call deposits 53,748 - - - - 53,748
Short-term Investmeants 144,369 - - - - 144389
Revearsa rapurchase
apresments 475,108 - - - - 475,108
Financial imvestments 74,284 - 70,168 - 10,763 155,205
Lozng, net of provision for
impaiment 45,838 109828 817,408 1,063,184 - 2,038,359
Non-sarming assets 12,117 - - - 3,608 15,723
Total financial aasats 805,465 109,828 B87.576 1,083,184 14,358 2 880,512
Financlal Llabllites
Interest bearing llabliides
Members' deposits 461,498 196,802 8,725 - - 568,125
Members' voluntary shares 1,281,347 - - - = 1,291,347
Borrowings 2,084 5,186 27,659 65,697 - 100,836
Non-nterast bearing
labilities 27,786 - - - - 27,786
Total financial llablilties 1,782,725 202,088 37,3684 85,697 - 2,087,894
Net posltion (977,260) (92,160) 850,192 997 487 14,359 792,618
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3. Financlal Risk Management (Continued)

{b} Liquidiy risk [continuad]}

Financial Habiiftfes and ansofs hold for managing Houldity risk {continued)

2010
No
Within 3 3to12 105 Ower5 Spacific
Months Montha Yoars Yoars Maturity Total
$°000 $'000 5000 $'000 $000 $'000
Financlal Assots
Eamings assets
Lguid assats -
Savings and call deposlts 18,830 - - - - 18,930
Short-term Investments 224 421 - - - - 224 421
Reverse repurchase agreements 370,472 - - - - 370472
Financial Invastmenis 73,174 2,855 686,651 - 10,389 152,869
Loans, net of provision for
impairment 73,395 80,256 820,910 1,032,114 - 2,016,675
Non-saming assets 9,543 - - - 3,574 13,117
Total financial asseis 769,935 92911  B8B7,561 1032114 13,963 2796484
Financial Liabllides
Intsrest baaring liabllitles
Members' deposits 455,185 181,286 10,664 s - 647,155
Members' voluntary shares 1,225 542 - - g - 1,225542
Bommowings 750 - - 7 - 750
Non-nterest bearing llabllides 19,932 - - - - 19,882
Total financlal llabllities 1,701,419 181,296 10,664 = - 1,893 379
Net poziton (931,484) (88,385) B76,897 1032114 13,963 803,105

Azszair avallable to meet all of the llabllliies and to cover outstanding loan commitments Include cash and
bank balances, investment securitiss and loans. In the normal course of business, & proportion of
mambars' lcana contractually rapayable within aone yaar will be axtanded. The Cradit Unlon [s also abie to
mest unexpected net cash outfliows by selling securities and acceseing overdrafi facllities from lts maln

financing instifutions.

Dff-stafoiment of financial positfon

All lcan commitments existing at the year end (Note 28 (a)) expire within 12 months.

Hems

—
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3. Financlal Risk Management (Continusd)
{c) Market risk

The Cradlt Unlon tekes on exposure to market risk, which Is the dsk that the fair value of future cash
flowe of a financlal Instrument will fluctuats because of changes In market prices. Market sk arises
malnly from changes In foreign cumency exchange rates and Interest rates. Market risk Is monltored by
the Risk and Compliance officer who monitors price movements of financial assets on the local markst.
Market risk exposuras are measured using senslitivity analysls. There has been no change to the Credkt
Unicn's exposure to market risk or the manner in which it manages and measuras the risk.

(i} Currancy risk

Currency risk ks the rsk that the falr value of future cash flows of a financial Instrumant will fluctuate
bacause of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Forelgn exchange rsk oceurs when the Credit Unlon takes on open positons In a curmency. To contmol
thiz exchange rigk, the Investment Commities has approved limits for net open positions and has also
adherad to the mandate of the Bank of Jamaleca to discontinue additional forelgn currency Investments.

The Cradit Unlon also has trensactional curmsncy exposums. Such exposure ardsas from having
financial asssls in currencies other than thoss in which financial liabilities are expected to settie. Tha
Cradit Unlons nat exposure Is kept to an acceptabls level as it has not been purchasing new
imvestments In foreign curmencles. Forelgn currencles purchased/{received) are sold Immediately to
tha commaercial banks.

Conceniraions of currency risk — on- and off-sintement of financial position finencial
instrurmants

The Credit Union is exposed to fomeign cumency movement through investments held in reverse
repurchase agreaments and financial wvestments as follows:

2011
Jamalcan uss GBP CAMNS Total
J$'000 J$'000 J3'000 J$'000 J$'000
Reversa repurchase agreemsnts 437,854 8,208 - 1,909 447,969
Financial investments 128,806 14,226 = - 144,032
567 660 22,432 - 1,808 592,001

2010
Jamalcan uss$ GBP CANS Total
J$'000 JE000 J5'000 J$'000 JE'000
Reversa repurchasa agresmants 332,365 7.899 8,372 405 47,048
Financial investments 124,010 14,089 1,927 711 140,737
456,375 21,988 8,306 1,118 487,785

There ware no off-statement of financial position financlal Instruments danominated In forelgn currenclas
gt the year end (2010 — nil}.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{c) Market risk {continuad]

1}

an

Currency risk {continuad})

Forsign currancy sensitivity

Tha following tabla Indicates the curmencles to which the Cradit Unlon had significant axposure on
te monetary assseis and lablities and Its forecast cash flows. The change In cumency rate
below represents menagament's aseessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sansltivity analysis represents outstanding foralgn cumancy denominated monsatary ltems and adjusis
their translation at the year end for the percantage changes in forsign curmency rates as indicated
balow. The sensiivilty analysls Includes Investmant sacuriiles. Thers would ba no Impact on equliy
other than through net surplus.

Change Effecton Change Effect on

In Currency Nat In Currancy Pdsd
Rute Surplus Rate Surplus
2011 2011 2010 20190
% $'000 % $°000
Currency:
Dewvaluation -
usD 0.5 112 +5 1,099
GBP 0.5 - +5 415
CAN 0.5 6 +5 56
Revaluation -
usD 0.5 {112) 5 {1,089)
GBP 0.5 - 5 {415)
CAN 0.5 (6) 5 {56)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate rigk i8 the rigk that the value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
bacause of changes In market Interest rates, and arises mainly from Investments, leans and deposits.

Floating rate instruments expose the Cradit Union to cash fiow intarast risk, whergas fixed interast rate
Instruments expose the Credit Unlon to falr value Interest dsk.

The Cradlt Unlon's Interast rate rsk polley requines it to manage Intarast rate rsk by melntalning an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate instruments. The policy algo requiras it to manage the
maturities of Interest bearing financlial assets and interest bearing financial llablities. The Board of
Directors sets limits on the leval of mismatch of Intarest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which Is
monitored by the Asset and Liablity Committes and the Traesury Committse.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{¢) Market risk (continued)

{If} Interest rate risk {continued)

The following tables summarisze the Credit Unlon's sxposure to Interast rate risk. It Includes the Credit
Unlon’s financlal Instruments at carnying amounts, categorisad by the earller of corfractual repricing or

maturity dates.

Financial Asseta
Earmning axasobs
Liquid sesats
Savings and call deposite

Ehort-termn inveatmants
Rawvsras rapurchass
agrawmenis

Financial hrvestmants

Loans, net of provielon for
impaiment

Non-saming esseis

Total financial asssin
Financlal Lishliites
Inkersat banring lnbiltiss
Membars' deposits
Mambers' voluntery sharea
Bomowings

Non-Inbersst bsaring
HmbA IR

Total finatwcial Babiithes
Totsl imtareat Rate

Benslthity Gap
Curnulaiive Gap

2011

Non-

Wthin 1 Within 3 ito 12 1ta 5 Ower 5 interest
Morth Months Months Yoars Yoars Bearing Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §7000 §'000
51,881 - - - - - 51,881
135,624 - - - - 62 135, 706
- 444 194 - - - 37 447,671
= 85,11 - 51,671 - 13,268 144,020
- 21,107 23121 522434 300,258 20922 1.727.882
- - - e 2 15,723 15,723
187,305 534 402 ga 121 754,005 900,208 53772 2520883
- 402,111 192,082 8070 = 48,866 852 579
- 1,214,820 - - - 34,000 1,250,620
458 220 o7 T.032 39,088 - 47,785
- - - - - 27 The 27 Th8
466 1,617,811 193,049 16,102 38,088 112,742 1,979,060
186,847 (1,083119) (98,828) 737,803 861,210 {58,970} 541,843

186 BT (BBE2T2)  {B2G.200) (258,207) 802913 543,943
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3. Financial Risk Managament {Continuad)
(c) Market risk (conmtinued)
() Interost rate risk {continuad)
2010
Non-
Wikhin1  WHhin3  3to12 15 Ovr3  Interest
Month Months  Months Years Years Bearing Total
$000 $000 §'o00 $o00 oo 5000 $000
Financlal Assets
Esming azzsts
Liquld sassts
Bavings and cal depoaits 18,037 E = = - = 18,037
Short-term nvealmants 211,087 - - - - 114 211211
Reverse repurchasa agreanents - 6,723 - - - 1325 347,048
Financial Iwestmants agreamears - 85,277 2,80z 58,937 - 12821 140,737
Loana, net of provision for
impairment - 16,289 75845 630840 864432 54011 1,700417
Nan-saming sssots - - - - - 13,117 13,117
Ttal financlal axeele 229,134 427280 7447 TARTIT 884432 51488 2430567
Finanalal Lisbiiites
Interset bearing llabiEties
Members' depoatts - 399,536 174,307 9,696 - 40389 623,837
Mambers’ voluntary sheres - 1130m - - - 3126 1175126
Borrowinga 750 - - - = = 750
Nor-interast baaring
llnbliXias = E : : - 1agas 19942
Total financlal Eabliities TS50 1538538 174307 .60 - _DAASE 1810745
Total Interest Rate
Senaliivity Gap 1,100,247 740081 884 16,968 610,322

Cumuisthe Gap 353 72 B42 827,790 810,822
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(c) Market risk (continued)

{ll] Interest rate risk [continuad)

Avarage effective vields on interest rate sensitive financial instruments by the sarier of the contraciual

re-pricing or maturity dates:

201

Within 1
Menth

Within 3
Months

3to12 1to5
Months Yaurs

Owver §

Walg hrted
Aversge

%
Emming asssts -
Licpuicd ek
Call deposits -
Short-term mvestmants
Lu] =
Reverse repurchass agresmenis
Loeal =
Faralgn cumenclas -
Financial Imsestrsants
Laocal &
Foreign currencias -
Loans (1) -
inberast bearing liabilities -
Members' depoalta {2) =

%

] %

11

18 18

%
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3. Financlal Risk Management {Continuad)
{c) Market risk ([continued}
{ll) Interest rate risk [continuad]}

2010
Within1 Whhin 3 3 and 12 itcd OwerS Welghted
Month  Months Months Yoars Yoars  Average
% % % % % %
Eaming sxawis -
Ligukd assaete
Call deposiis - 5 - - - §
Bhort-ierm Invesiments
Local - 8 - - - .|
Foraign - 1 - - - 1
Rwwverss repurchass agresements
Local - F i - - - 7
Foreign cumancies - 2 - = - 2
Financial mwestments
Lenzal - | - 12 - 10
Foreign cumencies - - 2 T - B
Loara {1} - 18 18 18 19 18
Intprest bearing liahikies -
Members' depesits (2} - 4 4 10 - 4

(1) Yields are based on book values, net of allowances for credit lcsses and contractual interest rates.

(2) Yields are based on contractual interest rates.

intorost rate sensitivity
The following table Indicates the senslivity to a reasonably poesible change In Interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, on the Credit Union's statement of comprehensive income and equity.

The sensitivity of the surplus is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on net surplus based on the
floating rate non-trading financlal assets and financial lizblilies. The sensitvity of other comprehensive Income
is calculated by revaluing fixed rate available-for-sale financial asssts for the effecis of the assumed changes
In interast rataa. The corrslation of varlablas will have a significant sffact In detarmining the uliimata Impast
on market risk, but to demonstirate the impact dus to the changes in each varigble, variables had to be
analysed on an Individual basks. i should be noted that movements In thase variables are non-near.
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Financlal Risk Managemont (Continued)

{c} Market risk {continued)

Interost rate sensitivily (coninued)
Change In Effect on Changa In Effect on
Bapls Points Met Surplus Baals Polria MNet Swrplus
2011 2011 2010 2010
$000 3000
J$ Instruments
50 {2,826) -100 {4,221)
+100 6,157 +200 B,442
USS Instruments
-50 (120) 50 {158}

(d} Operational risk
Operational rsk |s the risk of direct or Indirect loss arising from a variety of causes assocleted with the
Cradit Union's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
financlal feks such as those adsing from legal and regulatory requirements.

Tha Cradit Unlon's objectiva |s to manage oparational risk =0 as to balance the avoldanca of financlal
lozges and damage to s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avold conirol procedures that
restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to identify operational rigk is
assignad to tha Board and managament. This responsibllity I= supported by overall Cradit Unlon standards
for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

{l) Rsquirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls
and procedunas to address the deks [dentiflad.

{I} Reaquiraments for tha appropriate sagragation of dutlss, Including tha indepsndant autharsation of
transactions.

{ll} Requirements for the reconclllation and monltoring of transactions.

{v) Compllance with regulatory and other legal rsquiramants.

{v) Documentation of conirols and procedures.

{vl) Requirements for the reporiing of cperational losges and proposed remedial action.

{vil) Developmant of contingency plans.

{viii} Training and professional development.

{ix) Ethlcal and business standards.

{x} Risk mitigation, including Insurance wheam this |s affactiva.

Compllance with Cradit Unlon policles Is supparied by a programma of parodic reviews undariaken by
Internal Audit, The results of Internal Audit revlews are discussed with the management of the business
unit to which they relate, with summaries subwmitted to the Supervisory Commities, senior management and
tha Board of Directors.
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3. Financlal Risk Managamant (Continuad)

(a) Capltal managemant
The Credit Unlon's objectives In managing lis capltal, which ls a broader concept than the "equity” on the
face of the staternent of financial position, are:

{i}) tc maintain the members’ confidence in the safely and viability of the Credit Union.

(Il to sustaln the Credit Unlon's ablity to absorb any shocks due to losses or any other advarse
occurrence In the market.

(iii) to continuously meet statutory and any other regulatory requirements as required by the Registar
of Co-operative and Friendly Socleties, the Bank of Jamalca and the Jamalca Co-operative Credit
Union League Limited.

{lv} to maintain a strong caplial base to support planned expansion and the development of new lines
of business.

Capltal adequacy and the use of regulaiory capltal are monitored by tha Credlt Unlon's management
according to the guldalines In ks Caplial Adequacy Management Policy. The computation Is reported to
the Board of Directors each month and the Credit Union's capital adequacy ratio cummently exceeds tha
banchmarks set by the regulatory authoritles.

The League cumently requires member credlt unlons to maintalin a minimum level of the Institutional caplial

at 8% of total assets. The proposed Bank of Jamaica regulations require the League to ensure that
member cradit unlons:

{I} hold a minimum level of the regulatory capital of 8% of total assets; and
(i} maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to rislcweightad assets at or above 10%.

The table below summarises the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the Cradit Union for the
yaars sndad 31 Dacamber 2011 and 2010.

Actual Raquired Actual Regquired
2011 2011 010 2010
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Total regulatory capital - BOJ 435,507 164,842 403,198 151,856
Total Institutional eapltal - JCCUL 435,507 219,523 403,198 202,475
Rlsk-wolghtod assots;
Total risk-weighted assets 1,832,765 2,035,849

Total capital ratio 22,53% 19.80%
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4. Falr ¥alus Estimation

Fair valua is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a lability seted, between knowladgeable,
willing parties In an arm’s length fransaction.

Markst price s usad fo datermina fair value whare an acthve markat axists, as i ks tha best avidence of tha
fair value of a financial instrument However, markst prices ame not available for a number of financial
assels and llablliiles hald and Issusd by the Craedit Unlon. Tharaefors, for financlal Instruments whare no
market price Is avallable, the fair values presentad hawve been sstimated using present value or other
astimation and valuatlon techniques based on market conditions existing at the statemant of financlal position
date.

Tha valuas darivad from applying these technljuss are significently affected by the underying assumptions
used concaming both the amounts and timing of future cash flows and the discount rates.

The following methods and assumptions have been used in determining or estimating the fair value of the
Cradit Union's financlal Instruments:

{i) The fair value of liquid assets and other assets maturing within one year is assumed i approximate
thair camying amounts. This assumption Is applled to liquld assats and tha short-term elamants of all
other financial assets and financial liabilities.

(i) Tha fair valus of members’ deposits is assumed to be the amount payable on demand at the statement
of financlal position date.

(iiiy  The fair value of variabla rate financial instruments is assumed to approximate their carrying amounts.

{iv) The fair value of fixed rate loans is estimated by comparing market interest rates when the loans
wara granted with curmant market retes offerad on simllar lbans. For maich-funded loans, the
fair value is assumad to be equal io their camying velus, as gains and losses offsel each other.
Changas Ih the credit quallty of loans within the portfollo ars not taken Into account In datermining
groes falr values, as the Impact of credit risk Is recognised separately by deducting the amount of
the: provislons for cradit losses from both book and falr valies.

(v}  Financigl investments classified as evailable-for-gale are measured at fair value by reference to quated
markst pricas when avallable. If quoted market prices are not avallable, then falr valuss are astimated
on the basis of pricing models or other recognised valuation technigues. Unquoted equities classified as
avallable-forsale are measured at historical cost leas Impalrment, as thalr falr values cannot be
refiably determined.

(¥[} Financlal Invesiments classifled as held-to-maturity are measuraed at amoriised cost with a camying
value of $72,587,000 (2010 - §$70,832,000) for which the fair value has heen estimated at $76,674,000
{2010 - $73,802,000).

(vil}] Tha astimated falr valuas of tha off-statement of financial positon financial Instrumenis Is assumed to
approximate the amount committed at year end. When this information is not available, fair value is
esfimated using dlscounted cash flow analysls.

{viij The camying value of borrowings approximates fair value as the bomowings are camied at amortised

cost reflecting lts confractual obligations, and the Interest rates are reflective of current rates for simllar
transactions.
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4. Fair Yalue Estimation (Contl nued)

Financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial position at fair value are grouped hased on
the degree to which the falr value s observable:

& Laval 1 falr valus measuramants ars thosa derved from quoied prices {unadjusted} In acthve markats for
identlcal assets or llabliies;

& |avel 2 falr valus measurements are those derlved from Inputs other than quoted prices Included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived
from pricas); and

® |evel 3 fair valus measurements ars those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
aasst or llabllity that are not based on obasrvable market data (Unobearvable Inputa).

Theare am no revalued financial sssels grouped in levels 1 and 3. Available-for-sale financial assets totelling
$135,857,000 {2010 - $213,964,000) are groupsd In level 2.

5. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgementa In Applying Accounting Policles

Tha Cradit Unlon makes astimates and assumptliona that affact tha reported amounta of assatz and llabllites
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
axparence and other factors, Including expectations of future events that are belleved to ba reasonable under
the circumstances.

{a) Critical judgements In applying accounting policles

Held-to-maturity Investments

The Credit Union follows the guidance of IAS 39 in classifving non-derivative financial assets with fixad or
datarminable payments and fixad maturty as hald-to-maturlty. The classification requires judgement. In
making this judgement, the Credit Union evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If management wers to dispose of any of these investments (other than immatesial disposals) prior
to maturity, the entire portfollo would have to be classifled as avallable-for-sale. If the entire class of held-to-
maturity imvestments is compromised, the carmrying valua would increassef{decreasa) by comesponding entry
In the Investment reserve in equity.

(b} Key sources of sstimatlon uncerialnty

(i) Impairment losses on leans and advances

Tha Credit Unlon reviews Its loan portfollo to assess Impalment at least on a gquarterly basls. In
determining whather an impairment |ess should be recorded in the sttement of comprahensive incoms,
the Credit Unlon mekes |udgements as to whether there l= any observable data Indicating that there Is
a measurable docreasze in the estimated future cash flows from locans. This evidence may include
obsarvable data Indicating that thera has bean an adverss change In tha payment status of borrowars
in a group, or national or local economic conditions that comelate with defaults on asseis In the group.
Management uses estimates basad on historkcal loss experlence for asseis with credit rask
characteristice and objective svidence of impaiment similar to those in the porifolic when scheduling its
future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for sstimating both the amount and timing of
future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.

—
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5. Critical Accounting Esiimates and Judgements In Applying Accounting Policles (Continued)

{b) Key sources of estimation uncertaimty
{iy Employee benefits

The cost of these banafits and the presant valua of the pansion llablliias depand on a numbar of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions usad in
datarmining the net parodic cost (Incoma) for pansion and post-ratirament banseflis Include the expaciad
long-term rate of retum on the relevant plan assels and the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions will Impact the net periodie cost (Income) recorded for panslon and post-retirement beneflts
and may affect plannad funding of the penslon plan. Other key assumptions for the penslon and post

retiremnent benefit cost and credits are based in part on data suppliad by the League as well as on
currant market condiions.

{ll) intarest accruad on mambears' voluntary shares

The Credit Union accrues interest on members’ voluntary shares based on an estimate of the rate at
which It will be charged, but the final determination of the rate la subject to approval by th board of
directore subsaquent to the recelpt of the draft financlal siatements. The actual Interest rate approved
could differ from the estimate made. Management actruas interest at a rate determined after giving
conglderation to the profitabliity of the Credit Unlon and to historical Interest rates.

Fouos and Other Incomes

2011 2010

$°000 $'000

Rertal 3,233 1,797
Gain on foreign exchange 779 -
Entrance fees 1,762 1,502
Other 13,832 6,017

18,606 9.316
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7. Expenses by Nuture

Total adminlstrative and other operating expenses:

Advertising and pramotion
Auditors’ remuneretion -
Current year
Prior ysar
Awards and donations
Bank charges
Depreciation ard amortisation
Insurance
Forelgn exchange loes
Offlee
Professional fees
Property
Representation and affillation
Salaries, pension and other staff benafits (Note 8)
Sacurity
Sofiware maintanance
Liilities
Other

8. Siaff Costs

Wapas and salarlas
Statitory contributions
Pansion (Note 20)
Other

8. Taxatlon

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
4,717 6,531
4,600 5,200

- 250

1,800 1,950
2,425 2,169
6,110 4,592
10,585 9,869
- 1,500

3,498 4,151
1,254 1,277
8,611 9,303
19,331 19,295
133,030 107,102
6,318 5,003
1,983 1,857
10,761 10,874
10,070 5,083
295,001 197,806
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
108,705 91,784
15,663 456
24 (3,284)
10,638 10,148
133,030 107,102

The Credit Unlon & sxempt from Income tax under the proviglons of Secon 52{1) of The Co-operative

Socleties Act and Saction 12(1) of the Income Tax Act.
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10- Savings and Call Doposite

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
CuCash 51,881 18,037

CuCash deposits are cash managameant call accounts which are required to be maintained with the League and
should represant a minimum of 2% of the monthly average of mambears’ daposits and shares.

11. Shorl-Term Invesiments

2011 2010
$°000 $000
Available-for-sale, at fair value -

Jamaica Co-operative Cradit Union League Limited -

Fixed deposits and CuCash 135,706 210,397
National Gommerclal Bank {Jamalca) Limited -

Forelgn currency deposlis - 814
135,708 211,211

Amounts classified as short-termn imvestments have a term to maturity of 31 days (2010 - 31 days) at year end.

The nules of the Jamaica Co-operative Cradit Union League Limited stipulate that the Cradit Union must invest a
minimum of 10% of mambers' savings depoalts In short-term deposlt Instrumants. A minimum of 8% ke required to
be Invested with the League, and a maxdmum of 2% with any other financlal Institution. OFf the 8% requiremeant, a
minimum of 4% must ke invested in fixed deposits and & minimum of 2% in CuCash deposits (Note 10). At 31
December 2011, the Credit Linlon was In compliance with these requirements.

12. Reverss Repurchass Agreements

The Credit Unlon enters Inlo reverse repurchase agreements collaterallsed by Govemment of Jamalkca
sacuriies. These agresments may nasult In cradit expesurs In the event that the counterparty to the transaction
i unable to fulfill its collateral obligations. Included within raverse repurchase agreaments is related accuad
Interest racelvable of $3,777,000 (2010 - $1,324,000).

At 31 Decembar 2011, the Cradit Unlon held securiies totalling approxdmately $444. 184,000 (2010 -
$345,724,000) representing Govermment of Jamaica debt securiies, as collateral for reverse repurchase
agresmeants.
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13. Financial Investments

2011 2010
o0 3000
Avzilable-for-sale, at historical cost -
Unquoted equities -
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League Limited (&) 9,138 8,774
Quality Nedwork Co-operative Limitad (QNET) (b) 1,114 1,114
Jamazica Co-operative Insurance Agency Limited (c) 500 500
Cther deposits -
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League Limited - 2
10,753 10,390
Avaiable-for-sale, at fair value -
Jamaica Co-oparative Cradit Union League Limited -
Fixad deposit 181 145
The Bank of Nova Scotla Jamalca Limited -
Foreign cumency deposits - 2,638
151 2,783
10,904 13,173
Leans and receivables, at amortisad cost -
Jamalca Co-operative Cradit Unlon League Limited -
Martgage funds (d) 4,831 4,570
CuPremium (8] 55,709 52,062
60,540 56,632
HeldHo-maeturity, st amortised cost -
Government of Jamalca securities -
JA dollar banchmark investment notes 58,361 56,843
US dollar banchmark irmestmant note 14,226 14,089
72,5687 70,932
144,031 140,737

{a) The unguoled equlty Investment In the League, at & minimum of 1,825,050 shares, k& a requirement for the
Credit Union to retain membership status.

(b} The unquoted equlty Investment In CQualily Network Co-operative Limiied Is to help faclliiate the
development of the QNET software by that compary.

{c} The unguoted equity investment in Jamaica Co-opsralive Insurance Agency Limited (formery NUCS — Co-
operativa Insuranca Servicas Limliad) Is to assist In capital axpansion plans of that company.

(d) The rules of the League stipulate that the Credit Union must invest 5% of the net incraase in the members’
share accounts In the League's Morgape Fund Instruments. These Investments are used to secure joint
morigage facilities, which are extended to the members of the Credit Union.

{a) The CuPremium deposits in the League are long-term fored tenure savings instrumenis. GuPremium deposits
hava a minimum tanura of three years.
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14. Loans to Members

(a) Movement In loans during the year:

Balanca st beginning of year
Add: Disbureements during the year

Less: Repayments and franafars

Add; Inlerest receivable

Lass: Provialon for Impalment

{b) Delincuent loans

At 31 Dacambar 2011, thera ware 316 (2010 — 398) delinquant loans, agad two months and over.

Restatod Rastatod

2011 2010 2009
$'000 $'000 $'000
1,700,417 1,841,883 1,478,747
990,000 808,548 730,006
2,690,417 2,448,429 2,208,843
(956,905) (757,944) {564,119)
1,733,512 1,690,485 1,624,724
20,923 54,011 34,905
1,754,435 1,744,496 1,650,629
{28,553) {44,079) {17.748)
1,727 882 1,700,417 1,641,883

At minimum, tha total loan provision dertved balow |s consistant with the loan loss proviskaning rules of the
Leagua. The total provislon for 2010 was In excess of the provision raquired under IFRE provisioning rules.
The excess of the League’s provision aver the IFRS provision was dealt with through a transfer from
eccumulated surplus to a loan loss rezarve as Indicated In Note 14 (o) below.

Number of Months
In Arrears

Lasa than 2
2-3

3-B

6-12

Greatar than 12

Savings

N Delinquent Ag:II:I:t
of Loans Loans Expasune Rate Provision
Loans $'000 $'000 $'000 % $'000
72 12,846 32 12,534 - 3
65 18,965 108 19,856 10 1,997
101 35,609 300 35,309 30 10,683
150 17,889 620 17.278 60 10,739
1 = & = 100 =
388 86,319 1,341 84 977 23419
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14. Loans io Mambars (Continued)
{c} Provislon for Impalrmant

Provislon for Impalmment at baginning of year (IFRS)

Additional amounts provided during the year

Bad debis written off during the year

Provislon for Impalment at end of year (IFRS)

Provislon for Impalment In accondance with League provisioning rulas

Additional prowvigion for impairment threugh transfer from accumulated
sumplus to the kban kss reserve In non-Institutional capltal

Additlonal amounts provided during the year
Bad debts recoverad during the year
Charged fo statement of comprehensive income during the ysar

15. Cash and Bank Balancas

On hand
Current accounts

Cash balances do not atiract interest.

For the purpoges of the cash flow steterment, cash and cash equivalams compriss:

Cash
Savings and call deposits (Note 10)
Bank overdraft (Note 23)

2011 2010
$'000 $000
44,079 17,746
124,262 63,863
{141,788) (37.635)
26,553 44 078
23.419 149,546
= 105,467
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
124,262 63,968
{11,291) (11,221)
112,971 a2,747
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
3,607 3,974
8,687 4,285
12,294 7,859
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
12,294 7,858
51,681 18,037
{365} (750)
63,610 25,148
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16. Accournts Recelvable

Restated Restated
2011 2010 2009
$'000 $'000 $'000
Wiithholding tax recoverable - 14 617 3,810
Prepakd expenses 3,245 1,248 1,083
Other 3,428 5,528 3477
6,673 21,393 36,380
17. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets represent tha upgrade and implementation costs of the Cradit Union's softwars,
201 20140
$'000 $'000
Balance at tha baginning of year 224 428
Additions 1,096 -
Transfer from propadty, plant and equipment 236 338
Amortised during the year {b73) {540}
Net book value 1,033 224
18. Properly, Plant and Equipmant
211
Fumnlturs,
Fixtures Work -
Land and Computer and in-
Eulldings Equipment Equipment Roadway Progress Total
$'000 $'000 0o $'000 $°000 $'000
GCost -
1 January 2011 2p,992 18,532 22174 509 410 70,617
Addiions 126,413 245 3,71 - 1,788 132247
Transfers - 124 - - (124) -
Transfers to intangible assets - - - - (286) {288)
Disposals s - (254) - 2 {254}
At 31 December 2011 155,405 16,901 25711 508 1,798 202,324
Accumulsted Dapraciation -
1 January 2011 4,623 17,042 12,613 15 = 34,383
Change for the year 2,250 1,165 2,112 10 = 5,537
Disposals - - {164) - = {164}
31 Dacembear 2011 6,873 18,207 14,561 125 = 39,766
Net Book Value -
31 December 2011 148,532 654 11,150 384 1,798 162,558
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment [Continued}

2010
Fumniture,
Fbctures Work =
Land and Compuiar and In-
Bulldings Equipment Equlpment Roadway Progresas Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cost -
1 January 2010 20,307 17.601 20,966 509 1,941 61,324
Additions 8,685 1,029 ara - 411 10,498
Transfors - 6 1,280 - (1,606) -
Transfers to Intanglble assets - - - - {336) (334}
Dispasals - {414} {455} - = (B69)
At 31 Dacamber 2010 28,992 18,532 22174 509 410 70817
Accumulatad Dapraciation -
1 January 2010 3,890 15,281 11,208 105 = 31,184
Charge for the year 733 1,475 1,834 10 = 4,052
Disposals - (414) (429) - e (843}
31 Dacamber 2010 4,623 17,042 12,613 116 - 34,393
Net Book Value -
31 Decamber 2010 24,369 1,490 9,561 304 410 36,224

19. Investment Property

Investment property represents land at Islington, St. Mary at a cost of $8,712,000 (2010 - 58,712,000). The
investment property was valued at $19,000,000 (2010 - $19,500,000) as at February 2012 by professional
Indepandent valuators.

20. Retiremant Banafits

The Credit Unkon pariicipates In a joint contributory pansion achamea, which |s open to all parmanent employeas of
tha Credit Union and operated by the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League Limited. The plan provides
benefits 0 members based on sverage eamings for their final 3 years of service with the Cradit Union and
employees each contributing 5 - 10% of pensionable salaries. The plan is valued by independent actuaries
annually uging the projected unit credit method; the latest such valuglion being as et 31 December 2011.
Additionally, the plan Is valued by Independeant actuares triennially fo determine the adequacy of funding; the latest
such valuation being as at 31 Decambar 2010 revealsd that the scheme was adaquately funded as at that date.
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20. Retiremant Bsnafits (Continued)
Tha dafined bansflt aszet racognizad In the statamant of financlal position was determined as follows:

2011 2010
$'000 $7000
Fair value of plan assets 122,993 91,462
Present value of funded cbligations {88,370} {B60,481)
34,623 30,981
Unrscognizsed achuarial losses 12,888 10,007
47 492 41,078
The amounts recogniged In the statement of comprehensive Income are as follows:
2011 2010
$'000 ¥000
Currart service cout, net of smployee contribution (2.242) (1,302)
interest cost (7.432) (7.225}
Expected retum on plan assets 8,682 7020
Net actuarial logses recognised in the yaar (32) -
Change In Incoma not aliglble for recognition dua
to limit - 4,201
Tetal Included In staff costa (Nole B) (24) 3,284

The actual return on plan assets wag a nst surplus of approximatety $20,822,000 {2010 - $11,715,000).
The movemnent In the fair value of plan assets during the year wag as follows:

2011 219

$'000 $'000

At beginning of year 91,462 70,652
Expected retum on plan assels 9,682 7.520
Achiarial gains on plan assets 11,140 4,194

Contributions -

Employer 6,438 5.611
Employee 5,413 4,650
Beneflts pald (1,142) {1,185)
At end of year 122 983 81 462

ey 0 coseehoee e
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20. Retirement Benefite (Conlinued}
The movement in the present value of the defined benefit abligation during the year was as follows:

201 2010

5000 $000
At beginning of year 60,481 39,789
Cument service cost 7,655 5,053
Interest cost 7432 7,225
Actuarial losses on obligations 13,944 8,679
Beneflits pak {1,142) {1,185)
At end of year 88,370 60,481

Expacted conbributions to the plan for the year ending 31 December 2012 amount to appredmately
$6,500,000 (2011 - $5,812,000).

Tha axpactad retum on plan assats was detarmined by considering the axpactad relums avallable on tha
assets underying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on
groas redampiion yields as at the statement of flnanclal poslilon date. Expacted returns on equity and propery
Investments reflect long-term real rates of retum experlenced In the nespective markets.

The distribution of plan assets was as Tollows:

2011 2010
§$'000 % $000 %
Cuoted aquities 4 457 4 3,026 a
Roal astata 16,893 14 9,643 10
Govemment bonds £1,413 42 46,333 62
Repurchasse agreements 42649 35 257 28
US$ bonds 3,970 3 3,356 4
Cthar 3,611 2 3,187 k|
122,993 91,462

The five-vear trend for the fair value of plan assets, the defined hensfit ohligation, the surplus in the plan, and
experience adjustments for plan assets and liabliiles ks as follows:

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

$000 $°000 $'000 $000 $°000
Falr value of plan assets 122,863 91,462 70,652 50,388 43,240
Definad banefit cbligation {88,370) (80481) {38,789} {18,549}  (20,370)
Surplus 34,623 30,981 30,863 33,838 22 879
Experiencs adjustments —
Fair value of plan assets gain/(loss) 11,140 4,430 8,761 {188) (3,057}
Definad banafit abllgation losa/{gain) 8,106 14 555 {5,A98) {B,078)

—
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20. Retiromont Bonefits {Continuad)

Principal actuarial assumptions uaad In vahulng retirement banefits wers as follows:

211 2010
Disgcountrate  10% 11%
Expected retumn on plan assats 10% 10%
Future salary increases 8% 8%
Expactad averaga ramalning working Bves of
employees (years) 29 28
21. Mambers’ Deposits
2011 2010
$°'000 $°000
(a) Members' Special and Fixed deposits -
Opening balance 287,856 260,923
Deposits during the year 78,047 85,079
Intersst during the year 9,448 16,451
375,351 362,453
Less: Withdrawals during the year {90,850) {74,597)
284 501 287 858
{b) Mambears’ Ordinary daposits -
Opaning balanca 53,918 95,644
Daposits during the year a7 428 33,405
Intareat during the year 4 403 3,683
135,748 132,732
Lasz: Withdrewsls durdng the year {42,597) {38.814)
83,152 893,918
{¢) Members' Golden Harvest deposhs -
Opening balance 9,666 11,708
Deposite durdng the vear 1,930 2,711
Interest during the year 501 700
12,087 15,119
Lags: Withdrawals during the year {3,167) (5,453)
— 8830 9666
{d) Membars’ Solid Saver deposits -
Opening balancs 111,678 102,701
Deposits during the yesr 89,195 72,100
Interast during the year 3,065 4,200
203,928 178,001
Lass: Withdrawals during the year {85,658) (67,323)
118,270 111,678
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21. Members' Daposits {Contnued)

(o)

Mambers' Cther deposits -
Opening balance

Daposits during the year
Interest during the year

Legsy: Withcdrawaby during the year
Mambers' Draam Loan depoalts -
Opening balance

Deposits during the year

Interest during the year

Lessn: Withdrawals during the yaar

{g) Interast payabla on members’ deposits

22. Members' Voluntary Shares

Balance at the beginning of the year
Sharas recalved

Interest paid during the year
Sharas withdrawn or transfarmad

Add:. Interest payable
Balance at the end of the year

23. Bomrowlings

(s)

Bank overdraft
Extemal loan

Bank overdraft

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
113,475 78,335
263,751 219,512
1,851 2,587
a79,177 300,414
(237,721) (186,939)
141,456 113,475
6.198 5,962
2,698 3,501
216 236
9,110 9,699
{3,035) (3,501}
6,075 6,198
495 1,148
652,879 623,937
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
1,175,128 1,185,658
1,410,081 1,234,465
37,907 50,000
(1,408,494) (1,333,122)
1,214,620 1,137,001
36,000 38,125
1,250,620 1,175,128
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
265 750
47,400 -
47,765 750

The Cradit Unlon has an ovardraft facllity with the National Commarcial Bank Jamalca Limited (NCB) for
$15,000,000 (2010 - §15,000,000). The facility is secured by a lien over credit balances held at NCB
Capital Marketa Limitad. Tha bank averdraft at year end reprasents chaques lssued and unpresantad. Aa
at 31 December 2010, the Credit Union had drawn on approximately $750,000 of the avaiable facility.
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23. Borrowings {Continuad)

{b) Extermnal loans
This raprasents a vendor's morigage loan of $48,000,000 which atiracts Intarest at 12% per annum. The
loan I8 repayable In 180 monthly Instalments of $576,222.86 each commencing In July 2011, Under the
torma of the agreement, the Cradit Union has the oplion 1o make lump aum paymernts that can be applied
to the princlpal outstanding. The loan e securad by &8 llen on propaerty located at Lot 5, 8 Maln Sirest,
Ocho Rice, St Ann,

Included In the amount above |s approoddmately $6,915,000 dus within the next 12 months.

24. Accounts Payabla
Reatated Rostetod

2011 2010 2008

$'000 $'000 $'000

Other payables 13,407 8910 6,850
Accruad expanseas 20,526 16,722 12,618
33,833 25832 18 468

25 Members' Permanent Share Capltal
Mambers' parmanent share capital raprasants shares Invastad by mambars of tha Cradit Unlon. To satisfy
requirements for membershlp, each member must malntaln & minlmum of $1,000 {2010 - $400) In parmanent
ghares. Thess shares are not available for withdrawal.

The Cradit Union may purchase shares from a member out of its Share Transfer Fund Resarve (Note 27 (d))
for transfar to the Credit Unlon.

Dividends may be pald on parmanent shares sublact to the profitabliity of the Cradit Unlen.

Mambers' parmanant share capiial was as follows:

2011 2010

$'000 $'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 23,470 1,047

Share capltal recalved/redeemad 22,1564 22115

Dividends cradited during the year 2,347 308

Balanca at the year end 47,871 23470
28. Institutional Capital

Restated Restated

2011 2010 2008

$'000 $'000 $'000

Statutory resarve 381,837 374,289 322,612

Femaneant capital rezarve 5,439 5,439 5,439

387 376 379,725 328,051

{a) Statutory reserve
As required by the Co-operativa Societies Act and the rules of First Regional Co-operative Cradit Union
Limited, 2 minimum of twenty percent {20%) of the annual surplus before entrance fees, and amounts
collected for entrance fess must be transferrad to this reserve.
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28. Instiutional Capiial (Continued)

(b}

Permanent caplisl resarve
This reserva comprisas transfars from accumulated surplus on the recommandation of the directars, for the
purpose of strengthening institutional cepital,

27. Non-instifutional Caplial

(=)

(o)

{c)

o

(a}

(b)

2011 20140

$°000 $°000

Retirament baneflt asast rosarve 47,492 41,078
Loan koss raserve - 105,467
Capltal expendiure resarve 38,739 a8, 738
Share transfer fund 167 200
26,428 185,484

Retirameant boneafit asset resarvs
This rasarva was craated to matsh the retirement banefit asset of the Cradit Unlon. Movemeant on thia
reserve passes through accumulated surplus.

Loan Ioss reserve
This represents the excess of the Credit Union's imemally assessed provision for loan impairment, over
tha amount required under IFRS. This amount |s an appropration from the accumulatad surplua.

Capital sxpandiiurs ressrva

The capilal expenditre reserve was initially established by transfer from the contingency reserve.
Subsaquently transfers to the ressrve are approved by the members at the Annual General Masting. It is
avallable for future capltal projects undertaken by the Credlt Unlon.

Share transfer fund

The share transfer furnd reserve was established in accordance with Rule 15 and the Special Bye-laws
redating to Rula 11 of the Cradit Unlon's Rulas, for the purpose of redeaming parmanant shares from a
meamber to the Credit Linion,

Commitments

At 31 Decamber 2011 there were commitments of approximately 554,888,000 {2010 - $52,007.000) In
respect of loane approved, but not disbursed.

At 31 December 2011, thera were commiiments of approximately $848,000 {2010 — nil} In respect of
payments not yet disbursed as part of the Credit Union's capital expandibure projects.
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29. Comparison of Ledger Balances
Balance per Members' ledgers
Add: Accrued Interest
Less: Provislon for Impalrment

Balance per General ledger

(a) Fldellty Insurance coverage

Fidadity insurance coverage was maintained during the year.

(b} Lifa savings and loan protection Insurance

Thare wara |ifs savings and loan protection Insurance during the year.

¥1. Rolagied Party Transactions and Balances

The following transactions were camisd out with related parties:

{a) Ksy managemeant compansation

Salarieas and other shori-term ampleyea banaflis
Statutory contributions

Pansion benefits

Other

Shares Dapoalis Loans
$'000 $'000 $'000
1,214,620 652,384 1,733,512
35,000 495 20,823
1,250,820 652,878 1,754,435
- - {28,553}
1,250,620 652,879 1,727,882
1,250,820 652,879 1,727,682

2011 2010

$000 $'000

30,914 26,561

2,878 2,451

2247 1,802

3,796 3,796

38,835 34,710
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31. Related Party Transactions and Balances {Continusd)
{b) Loans

Loans to directors, committee members and key management of the Credit Union (and their families) —

2011 2010
$000 $'000
EBeginning of the year 68,476 68,158
Loans reclassfied (3.180) {18)
Loans advanced during the year 3.234 7,772
Loan repayments recaived (8,425) (7,4365)
EBalance at ysar end 60,105 68 476
Interest charged 8,154 8,359
Interest recelved (8,060) {6,673}
60,198 70,162
No provision for impairment is nequired for these loans.
(c) Shares and savings
2011 2010
000 $'000
Directors and comimitiee members 22,952 25,178
Staff members 12,147 11,632

32. Prior Year Adjustmenis

(a} In previous years, the commitment fees charged on membears' loans were recorded in full as an adjustment
to the loan account Instead of baing tima apporionad. This resulted In an understatemant of tha loans to
members balances at year end and Interast Income accounts. In addition to a restatement of the loans to
mambers balances and interast income, the prior vear adjustment hag resulted in an increase in the
statutory allocation to institutional capital in the affecied periods.

The adjustments had the following sffect on balances reportad in the previous years:
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32. Prior Yeur Adjustmonts (Continued)
Effect on the statement of finencled position

Azzats
Laang to members, net of impaiment

provision
Equity

Institutional capital
Accumulated surplus

Assetls

Loans to mambers, net of Impalment

provigion

Equity

Institutional capltal
Accumulated surplus

Effact on the siafement of comprehensive income

Interest Income

Interest on members’ loans

Net Burplus, being Total Comprahanshre
Incoms for the Year

Interest Incomse

Interast on members’ loans

Net Surplus, being Total Comprehsneive
Income for the Yaar

As previously

reportad Restatement As restated

2010
§$'000 $000 5000
1,582,758 117,658 1,700,417
361,643 18,085 379,728
17,238 99,574 116,813

2009
1,558,444 83,439 1,641,883
318,810 11,241 328,081
137,240 72,198 209,438

As previously

reported Rastatement As rosiatod

2010
$'000 $'000 $000
300,574 34,220 334,794
45,596 34,220 80,818

2008
260,632 31,483 292 095
83,508 31,463 114,972
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32. Prior Year Adjusiments (Contlnuad)
(b) In previous ysars, deceased membars' balances ware shown net on the statement of financial position.
Effactive In the currant year, the Cradit Unlon hag reclassified thasa balances to raflact balances dua from
deceased members, separately from balances dus to deceased meambers.

This reclassification had the following effect on balances reported In previous years:

As previously
reportad Rastatement As resiated
2010
$'000 $'000 $'000
Assots
Accourtts recsivabla 20,028 1,385 21,383
Liabliities
Accounts payable 24,287 1,365 25,632
2008
Assats
Accourts receivable 36,178 202 36,380
Liabliitles

Accounts payable 18,267 202 18,469
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Page 1
Administrative Expenses
Year ended 31 December 2011
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Personnel Expenses
Salaries and allowances 106,705 91,784
Travelling and subsistence 641 827
Statutory contributions 15,663 8,456
Pension 24 (3,284)
Other 9,997 9,319
133,030 107,102
Other Expenses
Computer services 43 249
Audit fees and related costs 5,424 6,317
Bad debts 546 235
Insurance 10,585 9,869
Software maintenance 1,983 1,857
Office 3,496 3,725
Security services 6,318 5,903
Printing, stationery and postage 188 426
Repairs and maintenance 1,554 1,310
Property taxes and rates 714 494
Utilities 10,761 10,874
Rental - branch offices 6,209 7,225
Scholarship 700 850
Bank charges 2,425 2,169
Depreciation 5537 4,052
Amortisation of intangible assets 573 540
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 91 25
Honorarium 1,100 1,100
Loss on foreign exchange - 1,500
Professional fees 430 410
GCT expenses 5,868 5,589
Miscellaneous 3,468 159
68,013 64,678
201,043 171,980
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Page 2
Other Operating Expenses
Year ended 31 December 2011
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
2011 2010
$°000 $’000
Representation and Affiliation
League fees 5,927 5,633
Stabilisation dues 6,298 6,106
Board and committee meetings 1,973 2,982
Credit Union meetings 1,621 864
Internaticnal Credit Union month 550 513
Annual general meeting 2,962 3,193
Grants and other expenses - 4
19,331 19,295
Advertising and Promotion
Advertising and promotion 3,717 5,031
Donation 1,000 1,500
4,717 6,531
24,048 25,826

100



